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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

The Directars have pieasure in submitting their Annual Report including the financial statements of WRC Holdings Ltd and its subsidiaties (the Group) for the year ended 30 June
2011
Principal Activitics

WRC Holdings Ltd (the Company} is the investment holding company of Greater Wellington Regional Counsil {Greater Wellinglon). The Group consists of WRC Holdings LAd, its
wholly owned subsidiary companies, Port Investments Ltd, Pringte House Ltd, Greater Wellingtea Rail Ltd, Greater Wellington Transport Lid, Greater Wellington Infrastruciure Ltd
and is a 76.9%% owner of CentrePort Lid.

The Group's primary objectives and activities are:
Support the Greater Wellingten's strategic vision, spermie as a successfl, sustainable and responsible business.

Own Greater Wellington's interest in CenfrePort Lid , 10 aximise the commercial value of CentrePort to the shareholders and to proteet the sharcholders’ investment, inctuding land
and property, while maintaining the CentrePon's sirategic vatue to the economy of the region.

CeatrePort owns and operates the port of Wellington and related facilities at Seaview and Miramar. It alse owns and operates a number of commercial propertics.
Current tenants include Statistics New Zeatand, New Zeatand Customs, Telstra Clear, NZ Rugby Union, and the Bank of New Zealand.

Own Greater Wellington®s current and fuiure investinents in rail rolling stock and rail infrastructure.

Greater Wellington Rait L1d curvently owns rait rolling stosk 19 the value of $152 milkion and station infrastructure to the value of $42 miliion

A contract was entered into wilh Rotem Mitsui for the supply of 96 Matangi electric muliiple units (EMUs). Ten of these are in revenue service at balance date.
On 30 Junc 2011 Grearer Wellington Rait limited Jook over the awnership of the Ganz Mavag and English Electric Jocomaotives from KiwiRail along with a number of
Rail stations supporting the melropolitan raii network.

‘The financinl objeetives of the Group shall be to:

Where possiblc, provide a commercial retum 1o sharchotders.

Adopt policies that prudently manage risk and proteci the irvestment of shareholders.

The environmental objectives of the Group shall be to:

Qperate in an environmentally responsible and sustainable manner.

Minimise the impact of any of 1he Group’s activities on the environment.

Raise awareness of environmental issucs within the Group.

Ensure CentrePort and Pringle House become more energy etliciens and make greater use of rencwable energy.

The social objectives of the Groogp shall be to:

Provide a safe and healthy workptace.

Panticipate in development, culturat and community activities within the regions in which the Group operates.

Help sustain the economy of the region.

The WRC Holdings Group me1 alf iis ohjectives as set out in the 2010/11 SO and Greater Wellingten's 2009-2019 Long-Term Couneil Community Plan {(LTCCP).

“I'he nature and scope of activities undesiaken by the yroup are consistent with thase set in the 2010711 Statement of ntent and Greater Wellington's LTCCP.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
FINANCIAL & NON PERFORMANCE TARGETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Statement of Service Performance
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Financial Results Compared with Statement of Intent (SOI) Taraets:

Actual Target Actual
2011 01l 2010
WRC Holdings - Group 3000 3000 SU00
Net surplus before fax 50,277 11,471 12,846
Net surplus alter tax 48,757 6,983 10,212
Eaming before [nterest 1ax, and depreciation (EBITD} 73,397 37,327 41,533
Retumn o0 totak assels 11.63% 4.31% 3.79%
Retum oa shareholder's equity: excluding any increase/decrease in the value of invesiment property 21,76% 3.09% 11.02%
Shareholders cquity o total assets 39.58% 23.90% 38,08%
Dividends 1,204 940 1,196
WRC Holdings - Parent
Dividend Distribution 1,204 940 1,195
Dividend Distribution % 100% 100% §00%
Retum on equity (1) 0.40% 2.70% -14.35%
Reiutn on assets {2) 3.16% 4.10% -0.3295

{1) bosed on net surplus before tax divided by average equity, but excluding revaluation gaing and fosses
{2) based on carnings before interest and tax divided by avesage assets

et surplus before tax
“The Greup posted 2 net surplus before tax, before any increasestdecrease in the value of investment property and land, of $50.2 millien {2010:512.8 million) compared to a budget
$11.5million for the year. The major reason for the sigmificant inerease was do 10 the write up of assets taken over from KiwiRail for nominal consideration of S1.

Net surplus after tax (before deduction of minority interest)
The net surplus afier tax was $48.8 million {2010: $10.2 milijon). This was before any valuation or fair value movements which were 510m downward (2010: 1 million downward}

Earning before tax and depreciation (EBITD}

EBITD was $73.4 million (2010 $41.5 million) compared to 2 budge of $37.3 million. Improvement driven by betier performance from Cenirelort and Rail
assets from KiwiRail..

Return on tetal asscls

This tarpel is caleulated as earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) ond expressed as 2 percentage of average total assels,

Return on sharcholder equity
This target is caleulated as net surplus afler tax (zfer deduction of minority interest) 95 a percentage of average shareholder equity (excluding minority interest). The measure is
shown both before and afier any incrcase in the value of investment propenties.

Dividends pald {or payable to the shareholders)
Dividend from the Group is $1.204 million (2018: $1.195 million).

ENVIRONMENT PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Manned Target

Operate in an cavironmentaly and sustainable manner.

Minimise the impact of any of the Group's activilies on the environment.
Raise awareness of environmentad issues within the Groug.

Ensure Pringle House Limited operates in an energy efficient manner.

Actuni Performance

The Group has complied with all of its resource consents.

WRC Holdings via Greater Wellington operales in a sustainable envivonmental manner, by minimising on environmental impaets, and raising awareness within the Group. These
inciude but not limited (o such activities a5 choosing vehicles with the lowest environmental impact, and supporting public transport usage.

Pringle House underwent an environment audit in: March 2008. A nember of initiatives have recently been undertaken 10 increase energy efficiency. These include progressive
replacement of halogen light fitings with fow watlage equivalents, Upgrade of the main chiller last financial year and a reguiar monitoring of eneriry usage by the property managers.
Three erergy efficiency proposals were seceived during the year for Pringle House but the cconomics of the preposed were not justifiable 10 wamant proceeding.

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

Pianned Target - WRC Holdings

To provide a safe and health workplace

‘To help sustain the cconamy of the region

To participation in development, cultural and community activities within the region in which the Group eperates.

Actual Performance
WRC Holdings through Grealer Wallington provides a safe and health working place and is supported with the development of regional cultural and community activities.

WRC Holdings through Greater Wellinglon's Economic Development Agency {Grow Wellington) assisis with regional economic sustainability,
WRC Holdings via CentrePert 1o partieipate in development of the cullural and community activities within the region
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
OTHER PERFORMANCE TARGETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 38 JUNE 2011

QTHER PERFORMANCE TARGETS - WRC Holdings Limited

Planned
WRC Holdings to act as a responsible and inquiriag shatcholder and Lo meet at least six times a year Lo review the operation and financial position of the company.

Actual
WRC Holdings and the Group of companies met more than 6 times a year to review each companies performance and monftor performance of the companies,
The Group's non-financial performance criteria contained in the statement of infent for the 2010/11 year, and results are summarised.

Performance targels for CentrePort are conlained in the financial statements of PIL Group.

Dircetors Information
Directors holtding office during the year were:

Parent and 160% ewned subsidiaries
P M Lamason (Chair)

FH Wilde (Depuly)

A Blackbom

[ Blades

P E Glensor

N Wilson

Remuneration of Directors of the Parent Company
Details of Direetors' remuneration are as follows:

s
P M Lamason {Chair) 2,536
F H Wilde {Deguty) il
A Blackburn 3,750
P Blades 3,750
P E Glensor Nil
N Wilson Nil
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATUTORY REPORT OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 38 JUNE 2011

Entries in the Interests Register
Disclosure af intcrests by Directors for the year ended 30 June 2611:

P M Lamason {Chair}
Couneiltor of Greater Wellinglon Regional Councit & Shareholder of Fitter Services Limited

F H Wilde (Deputy)
Counzillor & Chair of Greater Weltington Regional Council

A Blackbum
None

P Blades
None

I M Buchanan
Past Chair and cument Councillor of Greater Wellington Regional Council

J B Burke
Counciltor of Greater Weilington Regionat Councit

P E Glensor
Councillor of Greater Wellington Regional Council

Directors’ Interest Repister

Directors have had no interest in any transacticn or proposed transaction with the Group.

Directors® Insurance

The Company has arranged Directors' and Officers’ Liability insurance cover to indemnily the Dircetors against foss as a result of actions undertaken by them as directors and
employeces respectively, provided they operate within the law. This disclosvre is made in Jerms of section 162 of the Companics Act 1993.

Dircetars® Use of Cotnpany Infarmation

The board received no notices during the year from Dircclors requesting use of company information reecived in their capacity as Directors which would not have otherwise been
available to them.

Remuncration of Employecs
WRC Haldings limited has no employees, The Group comprising CentrePort Limited and its subsidiaries who received remuneration and ather benefits in excess of
$100,000 is tabulated below:

Number of current employees
$100,001 - 110,000 2
SE10,001 - $120,000
$120,601 - $130,000
$130,001 - 5$140,600
5140,001 - 5150,000
$150,001 - $160,000
$160,001 - $170,000
$170,001 - §150,000
$180,00: - $190,060
$190,001 - $200,00¢
$210,001 - 5220,000
$270,007 - $250,000
$350,007 - $360,000
§530,60) - 5540,000

S P N O P Y

Auditor
The Auditor-General is the appointed auditor in accordance with section §3 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 70 of the Local Government Act 2002. The Auditor-General has
appointed Karen Young of Audit New Zealand to undertake the audit,

For, and on behalf of, the Board of Direclors

Pirector October 20, 2011

Director Qetober 20, 2011
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Group Parent

Notes 2011 2010 011 2010
INCOME shop 5000 S0B0 5000
Operating Income * 198,248 80,078 3271 3,232
Share of associate profit accounted for using the equity method 574 738 - -
TOTAL INCOME H 198,822 80,836 3,278 3,232
CHANGES IN FAIR YALUES OF ASSETS & FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Increase {Decrease} in the value of Developed Investment Property - Pringle House L1d 2 (1,523) (1,702}
Increase (Decrease) in the value of Developed Investmen Property - CenireFori Limited 2 (4,735) (294) - .
Met change in value of Eand available for Development ) 29 1,692
Changes in Finaneial Instrumen Fair Valve 2 (4,E01) (7,691} (655) (794}
EXPENDITURE
Operaling Expenses 2 (31,461} 48,871) (1,245) (3,423}
Impaiment of Asscls 9 - - R R
SURPLUS BEFORE INTEREST AND INCOME TAXATION 137,691 23970 137 {985)
et Inferest 2 13.727) (10.415} {1,932} {1.840)
SURPLUS BEFORE INCOME TAXATION AND SUBVENTION
PAYMENT 2 123,364 13,555 (581) {2,823)
Subveniion payments 10 (908) (1,020} - .
Income Taxation * 0 (33.603) (3.090) - -
NET SURPLUS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS §8,553 9,444 (581} (2,825)
Profit for the Year from Discontinued Operations . - - -
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 88,853 9,444 {381) (2,825)
OTHER COMPRENENSIVE INCOME
Other Comprehensive Income 9 - 12,080 - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST $8,553 31,524 (581) (2,823)
Share of surplus atiributable to minority interest 4 (1.377) (£.203) - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TO THE EQUITY JIOLDERS 87476 17,229 (58D) (2.825)

* WRC Holdings has been redesignated a public benefit entity for financial reporting purpeses. Comparatives for 2010 have been reclassified to aid comparabilisy. Refes 1o note 24
for further information.
The accampanying noles form part of these finzncial statements.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Equity - opening balance as at 1 July
Shares Issued during the year
Other Movements

Total comprehensive income before minority interest for the year
Dividends attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent

Minority interest

Total dividends

Fotal recognised income and expenses for the peried

Bulance as at 30 June

* WRC Holdings has been redesignated a public benefit entity for financial reporting purposes. Comparatives for 2010 have been reclassified o aid

comparability. Refer to note 22 for further information.
The accompanying noes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes

Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2010
3000 s006 040 3000
213,847 193,447 12,774 15,528
13,346 1,264 13,346 1,264

727 - - -
58,853 21.524 (381) {2,525)
(1,204) (1,195) (1,204) (1,195)
{923} (3.193) -
(2,127 (2.388) 11.204) (£.195)
86,726 19.136 1.783) (4.019)
314,646 213,847 24,337 1377




WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 2011

EQUITY

Essued and paid up capital
Retained camings *
Revaluation reserve
Minority interest

TOTAL EQUITY

Represented by:

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash cquivalents

Deblors and other receivables

Taxalion refund

Current account - Greater Wellington Regtonal Council
Current account - Port Invesiments Lid

Cutrent account - Pringle House Ltd

Inventories

Totai Current Assets

Non Current Assets
Investenent properties
Invesiunents

Oiher financial assets
Property, Plani & Equipment
Deferred 1ax assel

Intangible asseis

Totaf Non Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Less:

11ABILITIES

Current Liabilitics

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables
Borrawings

Dividend payable

Provision for subvestion payments
Deferred revenue *

Provision for employee entitlements

‘Tota! Current Liabilities

Mo Current Liahilities
Borrowings

Other financial liabilities

Deferred taxation liability *
Deferred reveaue ™

Provision for employee entitlements
‘Total Non-Current Linbilitics
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

For, and on behalf of, the Board of Directors

Director Oclober 20, 2011

* WRC Holdings has beea redesignated o public benefit entity for financial reporting purposes. Comparatives for 2010 have been reclassified to aid

comparability. Refer 1o nate 24 for further information,

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Notes

(71

o

i4

10
16

i3
12
10

11

14
10

it

Directer

Group Parent
2011 2014 1011 2010
5000 SG00 s000 S000
30,726 37,380 50,726 37,380
174,697 87,167 (26,2589) {24,606}
42,528 43,060 - B
46.694 46.240 - -
3id.646 213.847 24,337 12,774
1,03% 299 4 1
8,371 5,508 1.494 1,555
329 et - -
2,275 1,335 (639} (357}
397 337
- - 1,997 1,997
10,401 1.121 - -
224135 §,651 3,433 3,333
228,278 230,321 - -
2,539 2115 66,584 54,367
. 455 - 457
363,604 236,155 - -
1,733 1,582 - -
408 641 - -
596,562 471.573 66.584 54.824
618,977 480,264 70,017 58,057
44 61 - -
10,592 8,993 182 141
135,960 106,262 44,097 44,046
1,666 1,928 1,204 1,186
508 1,007 - .
2,592 2,243 - -
158,762 120,494 43,483 45,383
90,000 120,000 -
8,495 4,837 i97
33372 20,331 - .
705§ 7535 - .
152,568 145923 197 -
304.330 266.417 45.680 45,383
314,047 213,847 24.337 12,774
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIRG ACTIVITIES
Cash was Provided from;

Receipts from Cuslomers

Dividend Income Received

Income Taxation Received

Interest Income Received

GST -Received

Cash was disbursed to:

Payments to Suppliers and Employess

Income Taxation paid

Inserest Expense paid

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment

Cash was Applied to:

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment

Development of Investment Properties

Subsidiary Company Shares

Purchase of Intangible Asscts

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash was Provided frem:

Psoceeds from Bomowings

Issue of Ordinary Shares

Movement in Current Account - Greater Wellington Regional Council

Cash was applied to:
Movement in curreat account - Greater WeHington Regional Council

Dividends Paid to Shareholders of the Company
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Increase / (Decrease} in Cash, cash equivalents & bank overdrafl at year end
Add Opening Cash, cash equivaleats / {Overdrail) Brought Forward

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS & BANK OVERDRAFT AT YEAR

The accompanying notes form part of these finarciol stalements.
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Notes
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Group Parent
2011 2018 011 2019
5000 5000 S000 5000
10,812 63,119 - -

250 3355 - -

32 5 - -

- - 1,925 1,840

(62} 603
(39,90%) (34,490 - -

(812) - - -
(13.579) (10,352) {1525) (1.840)
16,330 21,242 - -

69 9 -
{8,302) {14,390 - -
{3,963} {15,146) - .

(13,346) {1,264)

4% (59) - .
(12,245) £29.621) (13,346) (1,264}

(52) 10,726 31 46
13,346 1,264 13,346 1,264
(£3,346) (1,254) . .
{2,100} (1,346) (48) (46}
[1,193) {923} - .
(3,345) 8,467 13,345 1,264

140 88 3 -

299 211 1 1
1,038 299 4 1




WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE1
Statement of Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

The "Group" censists of WRC Holdings 1.4d, i1s wholly owned subsidiaries, Pringie House Ltd, Port Investments Ltd, Greater Wellingion Rail Ltd, Greater Wellington Transport 11d,
Greater Wellinglon Infrastructure Lid and its 76,996 subsidiary CenvrePort Lud, together with its subsidiaries, as disclosed in Note 7.

The financial statements are presented in aceordance with the requitements of the Companies Act 1993, the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and the Local Gavernment Act 2002 and
New Zeatand Generally Accepled Accounting Practices (NZ GAAT),

These financial stalements are prepared in accordanee with New Zealand equivaleats to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), as appropriale for public bznefit
oriented entities.

Unless othenwise stated, afl amounts are rounded to $000 and are expressed in New Zealand currency.
Basls of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost except for the revaluation of Operational Por Frechold Land, Investment Properties (Developed
Investment Properties, Land Available for Development and Assets Held for Sale) and financial instruments as outlined below,

Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets,
The going ¢oncern eoncept has been adopied in the preparation of these firancial statements.

For the purposes of financial reporting, WRC Holdings is designated as a public benefit entity, The subsidiary companies comprise Pringle House Limited, Port Investments Lintited,
Greater Wellington Rail Limited, Greater Weliington Transport Limited, Greater Wellington Infrastructure Limited and CentrePort Limited. AH subsidiaries, except Greater
Wellingion Rail Limiled, are designated as profit-oriented entities. Greater Wellingion Rail is designated as a public benefit entity.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures thiat the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of relevarce and reliability, thereby ensuring
that the substance of the underlying transaciions or other events is reported.

The accounting policies set out below hiave been applied in preparing the financial statemenis for the year ended 30 June 2011, the comparative information presented in these
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2010,

Specific Aceounting Policies
The specific accountiny policies adopled in the preparation of these financial statements, which materially affect the measurement of the statement of comprehensive Income,
slatement of movements in equity, balance sheet and cash flows are set out below:

1.} Basis of Consolidation

The Group financial statements inelude WRC Holdings Ltd and its subsidiaries. The subsidiaries are accounted for using the purchase method which involves adding tonether
corresponding assets, Habilities, revenues and expenses ot a line by line basis. The associate companies are accounted for on an equity accounting basis, which shows the share of
surplus/deficits (n the Group's Statement of comprehensive inceme and share of post acquisition increases/decrenses in nel assels in the Group's balance sheet,

(n acguisition, the 2sscis, labilities ang contingent liablities of a subsidiary are measured at fair volues at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cast of acquisition over the fair
values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwiil, If, afler reassessment, the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired exceeds the cost of acquisition, the
difference is credited to the Stalement of compreliensive income in the peried of acquisition,

The consolidated financial statements include the information and results of cach subsidiary from the date on which the company obtains centrol and until such time as the company
ceases to conlrol such subsidiary.

All sipnificant inler-company transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

1.2 Statement of Cash Flows
‘The foliowing arc the definisions used in the statensent of cash flows:

{a} Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and investiments in money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafls, Bank overdrafis are shown
within cash.

{0) Investing activities are those activities relating to the aequisition and disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property, Intangible Assets and Joint Ventures.
Tnvestments include securitics not falling within the definition of cash.

(¢) Financin activities are those activities that resuft in the changes in size and composition of the eapital structure of the Group. This includes both equity and debt not falling
within the definition of cash, Dividends peid in relation (o capital structuse are included in financing activities.

(6) Operating activities include all transactions and other events that are not investing or finaneing activities.

(e} Guoods and Services Tax {GST) is accounted for on an accruals basis consisient with the Statement of comprehensive income.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

1.3 Revenue
Revenue shown in the Staterment of comprehensive income comprises the amounts received and receivable by the Group for services provided to customers in the ordinary course of
business based on the stage of completion of the coniract at balance sheet date.

Rental incore from operating leases is recognised en a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Grants are recopnised in the statement of comprehensive income when eligibility has been established by the grantor,

Income js stated exclusive of GST collected from customers.
Interest and dividend income are recognised on an accrual basis.

1.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group has seven classes of Properiy, Plant and Equipment
Freehoid land

Buildings, wharves and paving

Cranes and floating plant

Plant, vchicles and equipment

Rail Infrastructure

Rail rolling stock

Work in Progress

Operational part frechald fand is stated at valuation determined every three years by an independent registered valuer. This class of asset was revatued in 2010. The basis of
valuation s fair value which is determined by reference 1o the assets highest and best use as determined by ap independent valuer.

The fair value of Operational Port Freehold Land is recognised in the financial statements of the Group and reviewed at the end of each reponting petied to ensure that the carying
value of Jand is not materially different from its fair value. Any revaluation increase of Operational Port Land is recogmised in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a
separate component of equity in the propertics revaluation reserve, excepl 1o the extent it reverses a previous revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in the
statement of comprehensive incame, in which case the increase is credited to the statement of comprehensive Lo the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in carrying
amount arising on the revaluation is charged to the statement of comprehensive income 1o the exient that it exceeds the balarcee, if any, held in the properties revaiuation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of port operational land,

The remaining Property, Plant & Eqeipment acguired by CenrePon on | Octaber 1988 are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, based on a business
valualioa carried oul in 2ccordonce with the Company plan under Seetion 21 of the Port Companies Act 1988. Subscquent purchases of remaining Propeny, Plant & Equipment are
recorded at cost. Cost represents the value of the consideration given 16 acquire the assets and the value of other directly attributable costs that have been incurred in bringing the
assels (o the location and condifion necessary for their intended service. Al these Property Plant & Equipment are depreciated excluding land.

GW Rait Public Transport rail station infrastructural assets were valued by Bayleys at depreciated replacement cost at 30 June 2611, GW Rail Ganz Mavag rollong stock were valued
by Halerow at depreciated replacement cost at 30 June 2011,

1.5 Investment Properties
Invesiment properties, which is property held to cam rentals andfor for capital appreciation, is measured at its fair value at the reparting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value of investment property are inclided in profit or loss in the peried in which they arise.

The Group has three classes of investment properties:
Developed Investment Propertics
Land Avaitable for Development
Investment Property Held for Sale.

1.6 Leased Asscts
Group entitics lease cestain land, buildings, wharves and plant. Leases are finance leases wherever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, All other leases are classificd as operating feases. Al Jeases held by the Group are classificd as operating leases,

Cousolidated enity as lesseer
Qperating lease payments are recognised as an expense o a straight-line basis over the lease tenn.

Consolidated entity s lessor:

Operating leases relate 10 subleases of surplus of properties leased by the company for its own operation use, with fease terms between | and 12 years, with an option to extend for 3
fisrther period between 1 1o 6 years. All operating lease eontracts comtain market review clauses in the event that the Group exercises its option 1o renew, The lessee does note have
an option to purchase the property at expiry of the lease period.

Lease incentive

{n the event that lease incentives are received Lo eater into aperating leases, such incentives aze recognised as a Habilily. The aggregate benefits of incentives are recognised as
seduction of tental expense on a straight-line basis, excepl where another sysiematic basis is more representative of the time pattem in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

1.7 Assets eld for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principaily through a sale transaction mither than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asse1 is availabie for immediate sale in its present condilion. Management must be comumitted to the sale, which shoutd be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sate within ene year from the date of classification.

Assets held for sale are measured at the fower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

1.8 Intangibles
Software is a finite life intangible and is recorded at cost less accumuiated amortisation and impairment. Arrortisation is charged on a sirzight line basis aver their estimated useful
tives between 1 and 5 years, The estimated usefut life and amortisation method is reviewed af the end of each annual reporiing peried.

Pagre §2



WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1.9 Impairment of assets

Al each tepating date, the Group reviews the canying amounts of il fangibie and intangible asseis 1o determine whether there is any indication thai those asscis have suffered an
impairment Joss. 1f any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does
not generale cash flows thal arc independent from other assets, the eonsolidation entity estimates the recoverable amount of the cagh-generating using to which the assel belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value Jess costs to setl and value in use. In assessing value in use, the cslimated future cash flows are discounted to their presess value using

a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenms of the time value of money and the risks speeific to the asset for which the estimates of future eash flows have not
been adjusted.

If'the recoverable amount offan assel (or cash-generating unit) is estimated 10 be less than its earrying amount, the camying amount of the asset (or cash-generating uni(} is reduced
10 its Tecoverable amaount, An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of comprehensive incotme immediately, unless the relevant asset is carsied at fair value, in which case
the impainment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asse: {cash-generating unit} is increascd to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but anly to the
exlent thai the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had not impairment loss been recognised for the asset {cash-
generating tnit) i prier years. A reversal of an impairment Joss is recognised in ihe Statement of comprehensive income immediately, unless the relevant assets is carried at fair
valug, in which case the reversat of the impairment Joss is ireated as a revaluation increase.

1.10 Pepreciation
There is no depreciation on capital works in progress and operational port land or investment properties, (developed investment properties, Jand available for development and assets

held for sale). Depreciation on all other property plant and equipment is charged on a straight line basis so as to write off the cost of the assets o their estimated residual vatue over
their expected economic lives, The expected economic lives are as foHows:

Buildings, wharves and paving 10 to 50 years
Cranes and floating plant 4 to 20 years
Plant, vehicles and equipment 2 ta 20 years
Rail rolling stock 3 1o 35 years
Rail Infrastructure 5 to 50 years
Other assets 010 20 years
Capital work in progress Not depreciated

The economic uselul lives, residual values and depreciation methed is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.

1.11 Borrewing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to capital consiruction are capitalised as part of ihe cost of those assets. All other borrowing eosts are recopnised as an expense in the period in
which they are incuered.

L.1Z Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are valued annually at the lower of cast and net asset backing, The change in valuation is recognised in the Statement of cemprehensive income.

tnvestments in associates are stated at the fair market value of the net tangible assels at acquisition plus the share of post-acquisition increases in reserves,

Investment properties are revalued annually o net current value, The change in valuation s recognised in the siatement of comprehensive income. There is not any depreciation on
invesiment propeniies.

Gther investments are stated ai the lower of cost and fair value.

1.13 Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents inchude cash o band, deposit held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 3 months or less.

1.14 Inventorics
Inveniories are valued at the lower of cost and not realisable value, Cost is calculated using the weighied average cost method. Net realisable value represents the estimated sciling

price less all estimated costs of completion and costs 10 be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution, Provision has been made for obsolescence where applicable. Apart from
fucl stacks, inventories are held for mainterance purposes only.

1.15 Income Taxation

Current Tax

Current tax is caleuleted by reference 10 the amount of income laxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or tax loss for the period. ftis caleulated using tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by reporfing date, Current tax for curvent and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or asser) to the extent that it is
unpaid {or refundable). Tax asscts and liabilities are offset only when the Group has a tegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and intends to seitie on a ret basis.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet lability method in respeet of 1emporary differences arising from differences befween the carrying amount of
assets and Habitities in the financial slatements and the corresponding tax base of those ems.

In principle, defarred 1ax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the exient that it is probzble that sufficient taxable
amounts will be available against which deductible temporary differeaces or unused tax losses and 1ax offsets can be utilised. However, deferred tax assets and linbilities are not
recagnised if the temporary differences giving rise te them arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities (other thar as a result of a business combinalion) which affecis
neither taxable income nor accounting profit,

Deferred tax linbilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, branches, assaciates and joint ventures except where the consalidated
enfity is able to caniro] the reversal of the temporary differences and it is prabable that the temporary differences will aot reverse in the foreseeable future.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1.15 Income Trxation - continued
Deferred 1ax asstls arising from deductible temporary differences assaciated with these investments and interests are only recopmised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profils against which to utilise the benefits of the lemporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable fuiure.

Peferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates 1hat are expecied to apply 1a the period(s) when the asset and liability giving rise to them are sealised ar seitled, based
on tax rates (znd tax laws) (hat kave been enacted or substantively enacted by reporiing date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assels reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manaer in which the Group expects, at the Teporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assels and liabilitics.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when (here is a legally enforcenble right to set off income taxes levied by the same taxation autharity and the Group intends te seitle its
current fax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Cutrrent and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred lax is recognised as an expense or income in the Statement of comprehensive income, except when it relales to items credited or debited directly to equity, in
which case 1he deferred tax is also recognised direcily in equity, or where it arises from the initial accounting for 1 business combination, in which case it is taken into account in the
determination of goodwill or excess.

1.16 Guods and Services Tax (GST)

The Group is pant of the Wetlington Regional Council GST Group. Al ilems in the financial statements ate exclusive of GST, with the exception of CentrePort’s receivables and
payables, which are consolidated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows arc included in the cash fiow statement on a net basis for GST purposes. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is
recoversble from, or payable to, the taxation authorily is classitied as operating cash flows.

Where GST is not recoverble as an input tax it is recognised as part of the related asset or expense.

1.17 Employce Entiticments

A provision for employee entitlements is recognised as a liability in respect of benefits eamed by employess bul not yet paid at balance date. Employee benefits include salaries,
wages, annual leave and long service leave. Where the services that gave rise (o the emplayee benefits are expected to be paid for within lwelve momhs of balance date, the
provision js the estimated amount expecled to be paid by the Group. The provision [or other employze benefil is stated at the present value of the future cash outflews expecled to
be incurred.

The present value is deiermined by discounting the future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the
liabilities.

1.18 Provisions
Provisions are recopmised swhen the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, the future sacrifice of cconomic beredits is prabable, and the amount of the pravision
can be measured refiably.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required 10 seule the present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertzinties
surrounding the ebligation, Where a provision is measured using the cash Nows estimated 10 selile the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

1.15 Provision for DBividends
Dividends are recomnised in the period that they are authorised and approved.

1.20 Financial Instremesnts

As part ol normal operations, the Group is party 1o financial instruments with risk (o meel operational needs. These financial instruments inelude baok overdrafl
facititics, interest rate swap agreements and forward foreipn exchange contracts. fnterest rate swap agreements are used within predetermined policies and fimits
in order to manage interest rale cXposure.

Offsetting fingucinl tnstrinents
Finarcinl assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet onby when there is a legaily enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

1,21 Financial Assets

lnvestments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase and sale of an investment is unader a contract whose lerms reguire delivery of the invesiments within (he
timefrome established by the market concerned, and are initially at fair value, plus transactions costs, excepl for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit o7 loss,
which are Iritally measured 21 fair value,

In the Parent financial siatements subsequent 19 indtial recogaition, invesiments in subsidiaries and joinl ventures are measured ai cost,

Ohher financial assels are classified inta the following specified categories: Fnancial assels ‘at fair value through profil or Joss’, and *loans and receivables’, The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recagnition.

Financial gssets at fair value throngl stetement of comprehensive inconre

The Group has classified cerlain derivative instruments as finzncial assets at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income. The policy for these items is outlined in note
123

Loans and receivables

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost using the effective inferest method less impaizment.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exacily discouns estimated future cash payments or receipts thraugh the expected life of the instrument or a shorter perfod, where
appropriale, to the net carrying amount of the financial assels or financial liabitity
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1.23 Financial liabilities
FPayabiex

‘Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the Group becomes obliged to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services and are
subsequently recorded at amontised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrawings
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of irpsaction costs,

Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured al amortised costs with any difference betweea the injtial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised
in profit and loss over the pericd of the borrowing using the effective interest rmte method.

1,23 Derjvative financial instruments

The Group entity enters into a variety of desivative financial instruments to manage ils exposure to inlerest rate and foreign exchange mic risk, including forward foreigr exchange
eontracts, interest rte swaps and cross cumency swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at ¢ost on the date a derivative eoniract is entered into, which is eguivalent to fair value, and arc subsequently re-measured {0 fair value at each
reporting date. Changes in fair value of derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the statemeat of comprehensive income.

Cash setdement of derivatives adjust the line in the statement of eomprehensive income to which the cash setfement relates.

Offsetiing financial tnstruinrents
Financial Assels and Liabilities are offset and the net amaunt reported in the balance sheet only when there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intentior to selile an a net basis, or to realise the asser and seltle the liability simultancously.

1.24 Financial instruments issucd by the company

Equity instripents
Equity instruments are classified as either liabilities or s equity in accordance with the substance of the comtractual amangement.
Dividendx

Dividends are classificd a5 expenses or as distributions of profit consistent with the statement of financial position elassification of the related equity instrument.

1.25 Foreign Curreney Fransactions
Transactions in foreign currency ave converied at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transacticn. At balance date, foreign monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
closing rate and exchange variations arising from these transactions are recognised in the statement of comprekensive income.

1.26G Joint Ventures

A joins venture is a comractual arrangement whereby the Group ard other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint contral that is wlien the sirategic financial
and operating policy decisions relating to the activities of the joint venture require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing conirel.

The results and assets and liabilitics of joint ventures are incorporated in the Group financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when the investment is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with NZ IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sate and Discontinued Operations.

Under the equity method, investments in joint veatures are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in sthe Group's share of the net assets of the
joint venture, less any impaitment in the value of individual investments. Losses of a joint venware in excess of the Group™s interest in thal joint venlure {whick ircludes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form pact of the Group's net investment in the joint venture) ase recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred iegat or constructive
obligations or made payments on bebolf of the joint venture.

Ang escess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair vaiue of the identifinbie assels, linbilitics and contingent liabilities of the joint venture secognised at the
date of acquisition is recopnised as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that investment. Any
exeess of the Group's share of the net fair vatue of the idemifiable assets, liabilitics and contingent labilities over the cost ol sequisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the statement of comprehensive income,

tnterests in jointfy controtled entities are recognised in the parent company's financial siatemenls using the cost method.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2611

1.27 Standards & interpretations effective in the current pericd
The following are the new or revised Standards or Interpretations in issue 1hat are not yet regaired to be adopted by the Group:

Effective for annual Expected to be initiallyapplied

reporting periods in the financial year ending
Standard/Interpretation beginning cn or after
Amendments to NZ 1AS 24 ‘Relaeted Party Disclosures’ 1 Jenuary 2011 30 June 2012
NZ [FRS 9 ‘Financial instruments' 1 Jenuary 2013 30 June 2014
*Revised NZ {FRS 8 ‘Financial Instruments’ (2010} 1lJenuany 2013 30 June 2014
Amendments to NZ (FRIC 14 ‘Prepayments of & Minimum 1 January2011 30 June 20312
Funding Reguirement’
Improvements to New Zealand Equivalentsto
internationa! Finencial Reporting Standards 2010
- Improvements to NZIFRS 7, NZ1AS 1, NZIAS 34 1 Januany 2011 30 june 2012
and NZ IFRIC 13
Amendments to NZ IAS 26 ‘Accounting and Reporting by 1 April 2041 230 June 2012
Retirement Benefit Plans'
Amendments fo NZ IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: 1 July 2031 30 June 2012
Disclosures’
Amendments to NZ IAS 12 * Income Taxes' - Deferred 1 Janualy 2012 30 June 2013
Tax: Recovery of Underlving Assets
Amendments to NZIFRS 7 - AppendixE 1 April 2011 30 June 2012
NZ IFRS 10 ‘Consolidaied Financiai Statements’ 4 January 2013 30 June 2014
NZ IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’ 1 Jenuary2013 30 June 2014
NZ IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ 1January2013 30 June 2014
NZ IFRS 43 'Fair Value Measurement' 1 lanuary2013 30 June 2014
NZ 125 27 '‘Sepsarate Financiel Statements’ (revised 1 Jsnuery 2013 30 lune 2014
2011}
NZ 1AS 28 '[nvestments in Associates and loint Ventures' 1 lanusiy 2013 30 June 2014
{revised 2011)
Amengments to New Zealand Equivalentsio 4 July 2011 30 June 2012
International Financisl Reporting Stendardsto
Harmonise with Internationsl Financiel Reporting
Standards and Australian Aceounting Stendards
FRS 44 ‘NZ Additionel Disclosures' Lluly 20141 30 June 2012
Amendments to FRS 44 ‘NZ Additional Disclosures 1July 2011 30 June 2012
Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial 1 July 2042 30 June 2013
Statements' - Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive [ncome
Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Empioyee Benefits' 1 Jenuary 2013 30 June 2014

*the revised NZ IFRS 9 adds guidance on the classification and measurement of financial [iabijlities and derrepgnition.
of financial instruments. The effective date remains the seme as the previous version of NZ IFRS 9, with earlier
adoption permitted.

Early Adoption of Amendments to NZ IAS 12 income Taxes

The Group has clected to carly adopt the amendments 1o NZ 1AS 12 Income Taxes ahead of iis mandatory implementation date of periods commencing on or afier 1 Januacy 2012,
This amendments intraduces the assumption thas the carying amount of investment property will be recovered through sale, which has the effect of lowering the Group's deferred tax
liability on investment property held far continuing use to depreciation which would be recoverable on sale. The impact on the 2011 tax expense Accounts is a decrense of $748k.

Other than amendments o MZ IAS (2 mznagement has not yet fully assessed the impact of these changes.

Adoption of New and Revised Standards and interpretations

The standards and interpretations listed below became mandatory in the carrent year. Management hias reviewed these standards and interpretations and lras Gelermined that there is
no material impact affecting the resulis and position of the Group.

« mprovements to NZ IFRS (2009)

+ Improvemenis to NZ IFRS (2010) - improvements to NZ IFRS 3 and NZ 1AS 27

« Amendments 1o NZ IFRS 2 'Share-Based Payment’ - Group Cash-Setdled Sharc-Based

« Amendment 1o NZ YAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation® - Classification of Rights

+ Amendments 1o NZ IFRIC 19 *Extinguishing Financial Lizbilities with Equity Instruments’

Key management assumptions and uncertainties

In the application of the Group's accounting policics, the directors arc required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions aboul the carrying amounls of asseis and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sourecs, The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevani.
Actual results may differ from these cstimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Retirement Gratoity

The valuation is on a discounted cash flow basis whereby the future cash flow Libility is discounted using a discount rate based on the 10-year government bond yield at balance
date.

Financial Instruments

Fair value is the amount for whai could be exchanged, or a lability selited, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction. Refer to noie 18 for details of fair
values of derivalives,
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

1.27 Standards & interpretations effective in the current peried {continued)

Property, Plant & Equipment and Investment Property

Certain items of Property, Plant & Equipment have been revalued to fair value at 30 Junc 2011, Investment Propedy has been revalued to Tair value at 30 fune
201 1. Refer 1o note § and 9 respectively for disclosure about the valuations and valuation methodology.

The Board and management of CenirePart have underiaken a process to determine what constituies Investment Property and what constitutes Properiy, Plant &
Equipment. Thete is an element of judgement in this, There is a developed Port plan, and those items of land that are considered integral to the operations of the
Port have been included in Operational Port Land. Land held specifically for eapital appreciation or to derive income rental have been classified as Investment
CentrePort esiimates the extent of future infrastructure costs that will be incurred to create investment property sites at Harbour Quays, These future costs have
been taken into account when determining the fair value of investment property.

1.28 Changes in Accounting Palicics
WRC Holdings has been redesignated a public benefit entity for financial reporting purposes, previcusly it was designated a profil oriented entity. Details of this
change can be found in note 24. There have been no other changes in accounting policies during the year,

129 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Tn the application of (he Group's aecounting policies, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions abou: the carying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant,
Actual resulis may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Property, Plant and Equipmient and Investment Propertics

Certain items of property, plant and equipment have been revalued to fair value at 30 June 2011, Investment Propertics have been revalued to fair value at 30 June 2011, Refer lo
note § and 9 respectively for disciosure about the valuations and valuation methodology.

The Board and management have undertaken a process to determine what constitutes [nvestment Property and what constitutes property, plaat and eguipment, There was an clement
of judgement in this. There is a developed port plar, and those items of Tand that are considered integral to the operations of the port have been included in operationial port kand.
Land held specifically [or capital appreciation or to derive income rental have been classified as investment property.

CentrePort estimales that the extent of future infrasiructure costs wilk be incurred to create investment property siles at Harbour Guays. These fulure costs have been taken into
account when determining the [sir value of investiment properiies.

Paec 17



WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE2

Operating Surplus before Subvention and Taxation
Notes

Operating surplus before subvention and taxation

After Crediting:

REVENUE

CentrePort Income

Rental Income

Opcearational Grants from Greater Wellinzton Regional Council
Capital Grants from Greater Wellington Regional Council
Fair Value - KiwiRaif Property Plant & Equipment and Stock
Equity accounted eamings of assotiate companies

Dividend Income from subsidiaries

Gain on sale of fixed assels

Inferest revenue

Qther revenue

Total Revenue

Change in financial instrument fair value 4
Increase {decrease) in the value of Land available for development - CentrePon Lxd

Increase {decrease) in the value of developed investmenl property - Pringle House Ltd

Increase {decrease) in the value of developed investment propesty - CentrePort Ltd

Change in value of Investment property

After Charging:
Impairment of Assels

EXPENSES

Amonisation 16
Bad debts written (backMoff
Change in provision for doubifut debts
BEepreciadion 9
Directors fees and expenses

Employee benefits expense

Energy costs {Pringle House only)

Fees paid to company auditoss for:

- Audit NZ: audil services

- Other auditor: audit services

- Audit NZ: other assurance services

- Other auditor: other assurance services

Tax services

Consultant and Professional fees

Ensurance

Legal Fees

Managemen fees

Maintenance

Rates

Rental and lease expenses

Write«down of invesmment properiy - Pringte House
Othier operating expenses

Total Expenses

inlerest expense
Inlerest capitalised
et interest

Operating Surplus before Sebvention and Taxation

Pave 18

Group Parent
2011 2010 W 2610
3000 5000 5000 S000
23,364 13,585 (381) (2,825)
47,669 47,4656 - -
25,331 18,897 - -
1,643 1,628 - -
40,044 11,958 - -
83417 - - -
574 758 - -
- - 1337 1402
69 9 - -
105 30 1,944 [,340
{10y
195,822 50,836 3.27¢ 3132
(4,10F) (1,691} (635) {794}
29 1,692 - -
(1,523) {1,702) - -
(4.735) 294) - -
(10,333 {7,995} (655) {794
282 412 “ -
47 13 - -
9393 9,570 B -
397 357 10 g
16,458 15,809 - -
43 24 - -
35 35 16 16
99 a5 - -
28 g - -
102 74 2] 37
156 13 - -
278 333 3 5
n 3 4 5
352 320 57 35
6,621 3,904 - -
4,543 4,192 - -
1,968 1,705 - -
1,128 3,225 1,129 3,225
9,097 6.647 3 2
31,401 48,871 1,245 3423
13,727 19415 1,952 1,840
13,727 415 1,952 840
123,364 13,555 (581) {2,315}




WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE3
Equity

Ordinary Share Capital

50,000,000 5t shares, uncalled
34,541,100 $1 shares, fully paid
22,170,000 S1 shares, part paid
Redeemable Preference Share Capital
25,000 51000 shates, paid to 1 cent

Total share capital

Revaluation reserve brought forward
Transfer from operational port land
Qther Movement

Revaleation reserve carvied forward

Retained Earnings / (Deficit) brought forward

Operating surplus afler income tax
Other Movement
Dividends to Parent

Retgined Earnings / (Deficit) earried forward

Minority Interest

Total Equity

Pare 19

Notes

Group Parent

011 o1e 2011 2010

5000 soop s008 5000
34,541 34,541 34,541 34,541
16,183 2,839 186,185 1,339
30,726 37,380 50,726 37,380
43,060 43,060 -

(530 - - -
42,529 43,060 - -
87,167 T1.133 (24,606) (20,586)
87476 §7,229 (579} (2,823)
1,238 - - -
{1.204) {£.1951 {1.204) (1.195)
174,697 87,167 {26,389} {24,606}
46,694 46.240 - -
314,646 213,847 24,337 12.774




WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE4

Minority Taterest

Group Parent
2011 20140 2011 2010
5000 5000 SQ0G s000
QOpening minorily interest 46,249 43,138 - -
Minority share of operating sumles 1,377 4,295 - -
Minority share of dividends paid or payable (923} (1.193) - -
Total Minarity Interest 46,694 46,248 - -
Minority interest represent the Marawatu-Wanganui Regional Council's 23,19 share of CentrePort Lid.
NOTES
Debtors & ather receivables
Group Parent
2011 1010 2011 2010
S000 5000 3000 5000
Trade reccivables 7392 4860 - -
Provisioning for doubtful debis arn {12) - -
Other receivables 348 50 - -
Prepaymenis Gi2 310 40 38
Interest receivable B - 117 g5
Dividends receivable - - 1.337 1,402
Total Receivables and Prepayments 3,371 5,508 1.494 1.555
Provision of Doubtful delns
Group Marent
2011 2010 2011 2010
060 s000 £000 5000
Opening balance 12 182 - -
Amounss wrilten off during the year (48%) (183) - .
Amounis recovered ducing the year . -
Increased in allowance recognised in statement of comprehensive income 47 13 - -
Closing balance 11 12 - -

The average credit period on sales of goods is 3@ days. No interest is charged on the trade receivnbles. An allowsnce has been made for estimated irrceoverable
amaunts from the sale of services, determined by reference 1o pasl default experience .

Included in trade reccivables are debiors willt a camying amount ol $0,965 million which are past due al 36 June 2031 {2010:50.405 million). The Group believes that the amounts
(et of doubtful debt provision) are recoverable.

Intluded in the aflowance for doubtful debts are S11,000 of debior balances where 1he respective company is in receivership or lquidation. Amounts written off during the year
represent 0.6% of income,

NOTE 6
Current Accounts
Group Parent

2011 1018 2011 2010

5000 S000 S000 SG00
Current account - Pringle House Lid - - 1,997 1,997
Curtrent account - Port Investiments Lid - - 397 337
Curreat account - Greater Wellington Regional Council 2,275 1.335 (659} (557)
Total Current Accounts 2,375 1.335 1,935 1,777
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 7

Investments

All group companies have 3 commen balance date of 30 June and all significant inter-company fransactions have been eliminated en consolidation.
Name Relationship Equity Held Principal Activiny
Pringle House Lid Subsidiary (100%) Prapeny owner

Port Investments Ltd Subsidiary (100%%5) Investment management
Greater Wellington Rail Lad Subsidiary {10088) Rail rolting stock owner
Grealer Wellington Transport Lid Subsidiary (100%3) Inactive company
Greater Wellington Infrastructuse Ltd Subsidiary (100% Inactive company
Centrefort Lid Subsidiary (76.9%) Port operaiions

Centrat Stevedoring Ltd Subsidiary * (76.9%%) [nactive company
CentrePort Propertics Limited Subsidiary (76.9%) [nactive company
CentrePac Ltd Joint Venture (38.5%5) Container packing
Transpors Systems 2000 Ltd Joint Venture {38.5%) Storage, wash and repair of containers
Wellington Port Coldstases 1td Joint Venture {38.5%%) Cold gtorage of produce

The Part of Wellington (1988) fimited 10034 owned by CentrePort was amalgamated into CentrePort limited during the year,

Group Parent
2011 2010 013 1030
3000 S000 3000 5000

Investments in Subsidlary Campanics

Investments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value and comprise

Pringle House Ltd - - 6,400 1,529
Port Investmenis Lid - - - -
Greater Wellingion Rail Lid - - 16,184 2,838
Greater Wellington Transpori Lid - - - -
Greater Wellinglon Infrastructuse Lid - -

‘Tatal investments in subsidiary companies - - 22584 10,367

Investment in Associate Compaznics - are stated ¢

at the fair market value of net tangible assets

at acquisition plus post acquisition increases in reserves

Carrying Amount at Beginning of Year 2,215 1,811 B -
Eguity accounted eamings of asseciate companies 5M 758 - .
Dividends from joint ventures (250) (354 . .
Carrying Amoun! at End of Year 2,539 1315 - -

Other Investments - are stated !
at the fower of cost and fair value
Advance to subsidiary - - 44,000 44.000

Total investments 2,539 2,215 66.584 54,367
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NOTE &
Investment Propertics
Group Parent
Notes 20611 2010 2011 2010
5000 5000 S000 5000

Developed investment properties 193,826 196,008 . -
Land available for development 34,452 34,423 . -
Investment property held for sale - -
TOTAL 228,278 230,521 - -
Valuation

Investment properties are revalued every year and are valued in accordance with New Zealand Property Institute Practice Standard 3 - Valuations for Financial Reporting Purposes as
fair value arrived at using comparable market rental informatien.

The Regional Council Centie at 142-146 Wakefield Street, Wellingion was valued by Teifer Young (Wellington) Limited as a1 30 June 2011, The vatuation of The Reyrional Council
Centre was $11.2 million (3810: $12.7 million).

CentrePort Investment properties were valued on 30 June 2011 by independent registered valuers of the firm Bayleys Propety Services Limited. The CentreFort valuation assumes
completion of the Harbour Quays Developmenit plan as approved by the CentrePont Board and certain costs te complete the infrastructure development have been identified to reduce
the valuation 1o the inspection date of 30 fune 201 1. The fair value of the investiment propery valued was $215 mitlion (2010: $218 miflion}.

Reconciliation of ¥avements in Investment Properfics

Group Parent
201 2010 2011 2010
S000 S000 5000 000
Developed investment properties brought ferward 196,098 185,234 - -
Additiens (Disposals) to investment propeny - 3,133 - -
Transfer from (10) property plant & equipment 3,963 1,308 - -
Transfer from {10) land availabie for development - 831 - -
Transfer from {io} assels held for sale - - - .
Classification carcection - (4,114) - -
Met change in the value of developed investment property (6,235) {294) “ -
Devejoped investment propertics carried forward 193,826 196,098 B -
Land available for development brought forward 34423 29,448 - -
Transfer from (to) developed investment property - 1,656 -
Teansfer from {10) property held for sale - (2,487) - -
Classification correction - 4,114 - -
Net change in the vajue of land available for development 29 1,692 - -
Land available for development earried forwurd 34,452 34,423 - -
Taotal Investment Property 226278 230,521 - -
Investment properties held for sale
Additions {Dispesals} to property held for sale - - R R
Transfer from {ta) developed investmenl properiy . - .
“Trans{er from {i0) lend available for development - .
Transfer from (1o) property plant & cquipment - . -
Met change in the value of developed investment preperly - - - -
Investment Property Held for Sake - - - .
TOTAL 228278 230,521 -
Net change in the value of investment property
Developed Investment Property (4,735) (294)
Land Available for Development 39 1,692
Pringle House (reduction)/iacrease in velue (1.527) (1,702}
Totzl Change in value (6.22%) (304)
As Presented In the Statement of comprehensive Income
As Part of Continising Operstions - Developed Invesiment Property {4,735) (294)
As Part of Continuing Opertions - Land Available for Development 29 1,692
Pringle House - Reduttion in value {1.523) (1,702
Total Change in value (6.229) (304}

The Group's investment properties cormprise:

{a) The Regional Council Centre at 142146 Wakefield Street, Wellingion.
{6} CentrePont's developed, undeveloped and held for sale invesiment properiies.
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NOTE

Property, Plant & Equipment

Operational Buildings, Crances and Property, Work In Rail Rolling Rail Infra- Total
Portand Wharves, Floating Plart and Progress Stock structure
frechold and Eguipment at cost Equipment at

land at fair Pavings at cost
Group — 2011 value cost
Gross Carrying Amount

000 s000 SHD S000 5000 5000 5000 S000

Balance ar 1 July 2010~ 81,877 100,71 40,328 11,974 28.244 37,145 - 300,379
Transfers - - - - (31,971} 31,974 - -
Additions - 7,134 3 711 532379 - - 61,155
Dispasals - - (2,763} - - - {2,762}
Other Movemenis ** . 531 72 123 - . - 719
Fair Valued PPE - KiwiRail - - - 41 - 33,7131 41,186 74,958
Balance at 30 June 2011 81.937 198,377 37.669 12.851 49,549 192,250 41.186 434.45%
Accumulated Depreciationfamortisatian and Impalrment
Balance at 1 July 2010 - 38,734 12,285 7,636 3,569 . 04,224
Transfers - . . - - . .
Deprecialion expense - 3273 1,906 683 3,53t 9,393
Drisposals - - {3,767) - - - (2.762)
Balance at 30 June 2011 - 42,007 11.429 8319 - 9,100 - 70.855
* excludes discount an acquisition
Net Book Value
as ot 30 June 2011 81.977 66,370 26,240 4,532 49,549 93,750 41.186 363,604

* excludes discount o scquisitien

«+ ther Maverments is the reversal of the discount on acquistion. The discount on acquisition of fixed assets amounting to $0.729m resulted from the purchase by Port Invesiments

Limited of 76.9% of CentrePort Limited in 1998/95.
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NOTE ¢ Continued
Property, Plant & Equipment
Cperational  Buildings, Crancs and Property, Wark In Rail Relling Rail Infra- Total
Portand  Wharves, Fioating Plant and Propress Stock strueture
frechold and Equipment at eost Equipment at
Group—2010 land at fair Pavings at cost
value cost
Gross Carrying Amount
5000 5000 5000 Sooo 5000 S000 S000
Balance at | July 2009 16,344 06,845 39,843 9,915 14,646 37,357 - 274,950
Transfers to nvestments 2,024 {13,332) - - - - - {11,308)
Additions . 8,727 485 2,068 13,598 - - 4878
Disposals - - . & . {212y - 221y
Change in Value of Port assets 3,609 8,471 - - - . - 12,030
Revaluations - - - - . . -
Balance at 30 June 2010 81.977 100,711 40,328 11,974 28,244 37.145 0 300378

Accumulated Repreciation/amortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 July 2000 . 35,110 10,346 6,938 - 2,266 - 34,660
Transfers - . . - - - - .
Depreciation . 3,624 1,939 704 - 3,303 - 9,570
Disposals - . - (6} - - . )
Classification Correction - - - - - - - -
Revaluatien - - . - . . - -
Balance at 30 Junc 2010 - 38,734 12,285 7,636 - 5,569 - 64,234
* includes discaunt on acquisition

Net Book Value

As at 30 June 2010 81.977 61977 28.043 4,338 28244 31,576 0 236.155
fmpairment

The Directors have revicwed assets and tested for impainment. As a reselt, no impaimeent (2010 § Nit) has been recognised in the Statement f comprehensive income,

Berrowing Costs Canpitalised
During the year borrewing costs of $0.427 million (2010: 1,352 million) were capitalised. The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds horrowed was 5.95% (2010: 5.99%).

Valuation

Operational port freehold Fand is revalued every three years, On 30 June 2010 operational port frecho!d land was independently valued by registered vatuers of the finn Bayleys
Valuations Limited. The valuations were based on the assets highest and best use in accordance with New Zealand Property Institute Practise Standard 3 — Valuations for Financial
Reporting Pumposes with reference to sales evidence of lard sales or development sites within the wider Weilinglon region. Each Frechold parcel of lang is valued on 2 per square
metre hasis by reference to the most comparable sales evidence with appropriate adjustments for size, shape and location, The valuation was $82 million. Additions subsequent 1o
the valuation are recorded i cost,

All other Property, Plant & Equipment are carried at cost less aceumulated depreciation and any allowanee for impaimment.

‘The discount on acquisition of fixed assels amounting to $0.729m resulled from the purchase by Port Iavestments Ltd of 76.9% of CentrePart Ltd in 1958/99.
This discount is no longer recognised and has been adjusted in the 201011 sccounts.

The parent, WRC Holdings Ltd, does not hold any property plant or equipment.
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MNOTE 19
Taxation Group Parent
2013 2010 2011 2010
5000 s000 000 S000
{n) Income tax recognised in profit or loss
Tax expensef{beneflit) comprises:
Curren; tax expense/{income) 712 1,644 - -
Adjustments recogniged in the cumrent period in relation to the current tax - 413 - -
of prior pericds
Delerred tax expense/(income) relating to the origination and reversal of 36,930 4,852 - -
temporary differences
Deferred tax expense arising from the write-down, or reversal of 645 {397) - -
previous write-down, of a deferred 1ax asset
Tax expense{benefit) relating to discontinued activitics - 14,7861
Impact of change in tax rate (2.861) (888)
Impact of changes 10 building depreciation {986) 4,289 - -
Tax loss recopnised {837} (1,382}
‘Total Tax expense/(benefit) 33,603 3,001 . -
The prima facic income lax expense on pre-tax accounting profit from opemtions recontiles
10 the income tax expense in the financial statements as follows:
{Profityloss from operations (123364 {13.3353) 38 2,825
{Prafityloss from digcontinued operations - . -
(123.364) (13,555} 381 2325
Income {ax expense/{benefit) caleulated at 309 37.009 4,067 1 {8581
Non-deductible expenses 1,530 490 339 969
Non-assessable income (26.593) - 401) 1421}
T.and and buildings reclassification 77 (3.635) . -
Tax effcet of imputation credits (o (1559 - .
Temporary differences 673 482 . N
Previously onrecognised and snused tax losses now utilised (534) {404) -
Tax loss offsets from or subventions paid (o Group companics 27 301 . -
Unused tax losses and tax offsels not recognised 761 742 116 280
impaci of change in tax rale 12.864) 888} - 20
Impact of changes to building depreciation (986} 4,289
lanpact of pain on asset sequisition 25025 -
33,619 4,715 . -
(QverYunder provision of incame 1ax in previous period {16} 0
Tax loss (35831
Tatat tax expensci{benciit) 33,603 3,091 - -
Tax expense/{beneflt) Is attributabie to:
Continuing operations 33.603 3,001 - .
33.603 3081 - -

In May 20H, the Government 2rnounced, and passed into iegislation, a reduction in the corporate tax mie from 30% to 282, which will be effective from 1 July 2011 for the Parent
and the Group. The effect of this change on the Parent and the Group's expecied deferred 1ax position as at 30 june 2011 has been accounted for in the cusrent year, with the effect
recognised ia the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Government alsa announced the removal of tax depreciation on buildings with a useful life of greater than 50 years, also effective from 1 July 2011 for the Parent and the Group.
The effect of this change on the deferred tax balance has beea accounted for and is reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Iceme.

{¢) Income tax recognised dircetly In equity Group Parent
2011 2010 2011 2019
000 s000 5008 5000

The following cumrent and deferred amounts were charged/
{credited) directly to equity during the period:

Current tax: . R . _

Deferred 1ax:
Adjustments lo opening retained carnings associated with changes
in accounting policies for financial instruments - - . .
Other - change in deferred tax recopnised - - . .
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NOTE 1
Taxation - Continued

{b) Current tax assets and liabilitics

Current tax assets:
Subvention receivable

Tax refund receivable
Other

Current tax payables:

Inconte tax payable altributable to:

Parent entity
Onher

(¢} Deferred tox balances

Deferred tax assets comprise
Tax losses

Temposary dilferences
Other

Deferred tax labilities comprise:

Temporary differences

Taxable and deductible lemporary differences acise from she following:

Group
2011

Cash and cash cquivalents
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other payables
Qaer financial Habilities
Reverue in advance

Other

Tax losses

Total

Group
2010

Cash and cash eguivalents
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Trede and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Revenue in advance

Orher

Tax losses

Tatal

Parent
2011 2010
$000 §000

Group

2011 2010
5009 S000

339 328

329 228
1,733 1,582
3,451 2,587
5,184 4,169
36,823 22.91%
56,823 22,913

Gpening Charged to Change in tax Changein  Closing balance
balanee income rate depreciation
on buildings
5000 3000 S000 $000 5000
(6.334) {1,556) 564 560 {6,666}
(16.584) (35,395} 1,467 355 (50,157)
1,099 1% 45) 1,090
1451 837 {14) - 2324
37 . - - 37
1,582 151 (8) 1,735
(53,749 (35,867) 1,964 1,055 (51.637)
Crpening Charged to Change in fax Changein  Closing balance
balance income rate deprecialion
on huildings
$000 so060 so00 5000 5000
{12.158) 3,609 158 2,057 {6334)
(8.739) (1,092} {407} {6.346) {16.584)
1,249 (110) 31 . 1,099
(398) 2,049 - - 1,458
3,70% (3.709) . R _
o - 37 R 37
1,695 (113) 1,582
{16,516) 2,442 {356) (4,289) {18,749)
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NOTE 10
Taxation - Continued

Taxable and deductible temporary differences arise from the follawing:

Parent Opening
2811 balanee
5060

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and oiber receivables
P'ropesty, piant and cquipment
Trade and other payables
(rher financial liabilities

Other

Charged to

income

5000

Change in tax
rate

s000

Changein  Closing balance

depreciation
on buildings

5000

soon

Total

Parent Cpening
1010 hatance

$000
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Properiy, ptant and cquipment
Trade and other payables
Other financial labilitics

Other

Charged to

income

S000

Change in tax
rate

3000

Change in Clasing balance

depreciation
on buildings

5006

000

Tuolal

Unrecognised deferred tax balanees

The foliowing deferred tax assets have not been brought Lo account as assels:
Tax losses

Unused tax credils

Temporary di{ferences

Tax bosses not recognised

WRC Holdings has a tax loss to carry forward 10 the 2012 income year of $1,744,147 (2010: 956,395} The tax effect of these [osses is $488,361 (2010: $286,919) is not recognised

in the Parent's accounts. However, these losses have been recognised in the Group's accounis.

Pert Investments Limited has unrecognised tax losses of 54,412,352 (2010: $4,643,037) available to be carried forward and 1o be offset against taxable income in the fulure. The tax

2011
3060

Group

2010
S000

Purent

2011
5000

{488)

2010
3000

(280)

offect of these losses is $1,235,459 (2010: $1,392,911). These tosses bave been recognised in the Group's accounts,

(488)

240

Greater Wellington Rail Limited has tax losses of $35,610 (2010: nil} avaitable to be carried forward and to be offset against taxable income in the future, The tax effeci of these

losses is $9,971 ¢2010: nil}. These losses have been recognised in the Group's accounts.

The 2011 financial statements acerue a subvention payment for the wilisation of lesses incurred by Greater Wellington Regional Councif of $908,000 (2018: $1,007,000) payabls by

Pringle House Limited. A subvention payment was made during the year by Pringle House Lieited relating to the 2050 net loss of Greater Wellinglon Regional Council thal was

utilised in that year.

The abitity to camy forward 1ax losses s conlingent upon the relevant companies continuing to meet the requirements of the Income Tax Act 2007,

{d) Imputation credit account balances Group
2011 2010
S000 5000
Balance at beginning of the period 11,107 11,649
Altached to dividends received 1,364 923
Taxation paid 615 .
Atlached to dividends paid {1.794) {1.513)
Cther adjustraents 21 50
Balance at end of the pericd 11,313 11,107
Jmputation credits available direcily and indirectly to shareholders of the parent company,
through
Parent company 410 408
Subsidiarics 10,803 10,699
1£,313 11,107
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 38 JUNE 2011

NOTE 11
Provision for Employee Entitlements
Group Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
000 3000 s000 s000
Balance at bepinning of year 2,998 1874 - -
Additional provision made 1,602 1,606 - -
Arnount {1,307y (1,482) - -
Batance at End of Year 3.203 2,998 - -
This is represented by:
Current 2,592 2243 - -
Mon-current 0| 755 - -
Balance at End of Year 3.293 299§ - -

The provision for employes entitlements relates to employee benefits such as redundancy provisions, acerued annual leave, sick leave and long service leave. The
provision is affected by » aumber of estimates, including the expected Jength of senvice of emplayees and the timing of benefits being taken.

‘The rate used For discounting the provision for futere payments is 5.2% {2010: 5,30%5).
NOTE 12

Dividends Payable

Group Parent
11 2010 2011 2010
R{HIli] s00g $000 send
Proposed distvibutions:
Proposed dividend to the Greater Wellington Regional Council 1,204 1,196 1,204 1,196
Proposed dividend to minority interest 462 732 - -
Tota] Bividends Deelared 1.666 1,928 1,204 1,196
NOTE 13
External Debt
Group Parent
2011 2010 2011 2010
3000 5000 50049 5000
Bank loans - current 135,960 106,262 44,067 44,046
Bank loans - long tenn 90.000 120.009 -
Total External Debt 225,960 226,262 44.097 44,846

The Parent has 543.4 million of Commercial Paper an issue which is supparied by a $44 million bank focility with the Commonwealsh Bank of Australia. The debt is secured by
$50,000,000 of uncatled shares in favour of Greater Wellingion Regional Cauncil. The sccurity is maintained by Trusiee Executors. The inlerest rate charged on the facility as at 30
June 2411 was 2.77% p.a. (30 June 2010: 3.63%% p.a.).

CentrePort has a unsecured banks loan facility 0f $203 million with renewal dates in, 2011 and 2012. The facility can be repaid or drawn down until expiry. The inferest rate charped
on this facility as at 30 Junce 2011 ranged from 3.23% to 3.33% p.a. (20£0: 2.97% te 4.24%6). No collaleral was required on lending, but CentrePort Limited has given the bank a
negative pledge and there are therefore restrictions on the quantum of hoowing made.

In December 2010 Wellington Regional Council (with a long-term credit rating of AA), guaranieed the borrowings of CentrePort Limited up to their banking facility limit of 5203
millien. In recognition of the provision of the guamntes the company pays a guaraniee fee to Wellington Regional Council {refer related party transactions).
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NOTEH
Finoneial Instruments
Mature of selivities and management policies with respect to financial instrumients:

Fair Valucs
The estimated fair value of the foHowing financial instrumenis are:

Finaneiol Risk ivansgement Objectives

‘The Group's finance function provides services to the business, co-ardinates access to financial markets, monitors and manages the finzncial Tisk relating 10 the
operations of the Graup through internal risk reports which analyses exposure by degree and magmitade of risks. These risks include market risk (including
currency risk, fair value interest mate risk and price risk), credit visk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group secks 1o minimise the effects of these risks, by using derivative financial instruments lo hedge these risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is
governed by the Group's policies approved by the board of directors, which proviss writien principles on foreiyn exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, the
use of finaneiat derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments. The Group docs aol enler inlo or trade financial instruments, including derivative fnancial
instruments for specalative purposes.

Treasury activisies are reported to the Board quarierly at CentrePort and at each meeting of the WRC Holdings Beard. In addition, CentrePort has established a
Treasury Committee with independent Treasury advisors a5 a members. WRC Holgings Treasury activities are covered by Greater Wellington's Treasury Policy.

Fair valucs

The Group considers that the camying amount of financial assels and financial liabilities (except borrowings) reeorded ia the financial statements approximales
their fair values,

Fair value assumptions
Cash and cash equivaleats, irade and other receivables, other Rnancial assets, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities are either fair valued or
approximate fair valued on the Balance Sheet.

The fair value for assels at amonised cost {iacluding cash, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities) is determnined by
using discounted cash flow models incorparating market observable data for similar instrumenis.

Estimation of Fair Value of Financicl Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is determined on a hierarchical basis that refiects 1he significance of the inputs used in making the measurements, The fair
value hierarchy is:

+ Level 1 fair value measurements are those dedved from quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identicat asseis or liabilities

+ Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs aiher than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability,
cither direciky (i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.c. derived from prices)

+ Level 3 fair volue measurements are those derived from valuation techniaues that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

Assumptians lor valuation models are based on management’s judgements and estimates, Changes in the assumptions used in these models and projections of
future cash flows could affect the reported fair value of financizl instruments,

Fair value measurements recognised in the batance sheet. Al financial instruments recognised on WRC Holdings Limited’s balance sheet at fair value sit within
level 2.

Inter- group advances
The Parent compaay halds balances with oiher groug entities. These inter-group advances are non-interest bearing, and are carried al cost not fair value. It is
considered impractical 1o determine the fair value of these advances due ta the difficulty of doing se without an actively traded market.

Significant accoupting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and meihods adopted, including the critera for recogaition, and the basis of measurement applied in respect of cach
class of financizl asset, Fnancial liability and equity instrument are disciosed in note i to the financial statements.

Capital risk management
The Group manages it capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able t¢ continue as a going concemn while maximising the retum to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of deby, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 13,

‘The Boards of Dircctors review the capital structure at least annually. This review is forward focused and considers the availability, cost and risks associzted with
cach ¢lass of capital 1o balance capital siructure through the pavment of dividends and issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Externally imposed capital requirements

CentrePort Limited has borrowing covenant requirements for gearing and interest cover ratios. Covenants are reporied semi-annually to the Board then forwarded
its banker. All externally imposed covenants have been complied with during the period. WRC Holdings Limited does not kave any financial covenams on its
borrowing.
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Note 14 {continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is cxposed to inlerest rate tisk a5 the Group borrows funds at bath fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Grovp by nuaintaining
an apprapriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, by the use of interest rate swap contracts and forward interes! rale contracis, Hedging activities are
evaluated regutarly fo align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite as provided for in the Treasury Palicy; ensuring optimal hedging strategies are
applied, by cither positioning the balance sheet or protecting interest expense through different interest rate cycles.

The Group's expasures 1o interest rates on financial assels and finaneial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of nate 14,

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The scnsitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposuse 10 interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the reporting
date and the stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A 19 or 100 basis point
(2010:124} increase or decrease represenis management's assessment of the possible change in interest rates

At reporting date, iT interest rates had been 135 or 100 basis points higher or lower and sll other variables were held constant, the Group's net profit would
increase/decrease by $970,000/51.364,000 (2010: decreasefincrease by 59,536,000}

The Group's seasitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current period due an increase in interest rate swaps, However interest rmte swaps are revalued
which had lead (o a greater volatility in revaluation movement.

Interest Rate Swap

Under inferest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rale inierest amounts calculated o agreed notional
principal amounts. Such coniracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rales on the fir value of issued fixed rte debt held and the cash flow
exposures on the issued variable rate debt held. The fair valug ofinterust rate swaps are based on markel values of equivalent instruments at the reponiing dale and
are disclosed below. The average interest rate is based on the outstarding balances.

At balance date the Group had entered into the following swap agreements and interest rate collars {options) thai had interest rales sanging from 3.35% to 7.30%
(2009: 4.15% 10 7.30% p.a.) and maturitics ot

Interest Rate Swap Agreements - Group Group
Interest Interest Face Value Fair Value Face Value Fair Yalue
n 1010 2011 2011 2010 2010
Financial Assets Yo % 000 5006 5000 s000
Less than one year 339 20,750 2
Two to five years 4.03 20,000 457
Total Financial Asscts - - 40,750 459
Financial Liabilitics
Less than one year 348 24,060 (30)
One to two years 6.49 649 20,068 (1,148) 20,000 (1,207
Two to five years | 3 4.87 45,000 {1,009) 45,000 (145)
2 4.05 45,600 {1,437)
4.03 4.03 30,000 (147
376 40,000 2,620}
Greater than 5 yeats 599 559 25,000 {2,089) 35,000 (1,610)
5.76 40,000 (1,647)
518 45.000 {228}
Total Financial Liabilitics 215,000 (8.495) 175,000 (4.837N
Foreign Exchange contracis - - - -
Diesel contracts {Current liabilities) [Gas) {611
Total Financial Instruments 219,000 (8,535 215,750 (4,439
I Inlerest mie to 15 June 2012 3,77, thereafler 4.87%
2 Inlercst rale to 15 June 2012 4.03, thereadter 5.18%
Interest Rate Swap Agreements - Parent Parent
Interest Face Yalue Fair Value Face Valee Fair Value
Rate 2011 2011 2010 2010
Financial Assets Yo 5000 5040 S600 5080
Less than one year 348 24,000 {30}
Two to five years 415 10,000 (121 0,000 67
Two o five years 392 14,0400 {26} 10,000 290
Tofal Financial Assets 44,600 {197) 20,000 457
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Note 14 (cantinued)

Maturity profile of financial instruments - group

The following table details the Group's exposure 1o interest rate risk at 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2010

Weighted Yariable Maturity Profile of Financial Instruments Non
Group Average interest interest Tetal
Effestive Rate Bearing
o Enterest NZE000
Rate % Less than | 12 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5+ years
onc year
S000 s000 5600 5000 5000 5000 S009 5000
Finaneial Liabilitics:
Trade payables 19,592 - - - - 10,592 13,592
QOther payables 4917 703 - - - - 3618 5,618
Dbt - Pasent 2.77% 44,097 - - - - - 44,087
Debs - 4.93% 187% 91,863 90,000 - - - . - 181,863
Total 51,469 90,701 - - - - 16,210 242,170
Weighted Variable Fixed Maturity Dates Non
Group Average interest intcrest Total
Eftective Rate Bearing
pithii] I[nterest NZ 3’000
Rate % Lessthan | 1-2 vears 2-3 years 3.4 vears 4-5 years S+ years
one year
5000 5000 S000 000 S000 5600 $000 5000
Financial Linbilities:
Trade payables 8,993 - . - - 8,993 8,993
Other payables 62,278 755 - - . - 63,033 63,033
Debl - Parent 4.03% 3.22% 44,046 - - - - - . 44,046
Debt - 5.49% 3.10% 62215 30,000 90,000 - . - - 182,216
Total 177,533 30,755 90,006 - - - 72,026 298,288
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

MNaote 14 (continued)

Maturity Profile of Financial Instruments - Parent

The following table details the parents exposure to interest tate visk at 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2010

Welghted WVariable Fixed Materity Dates Non
Parent Average interest interest Total
Effective Rate Bearing
2011 Interest NZ 5’008
Rate % Lessthan | 32 years 2-3 vears 3-4 years 4-5 years 5+ years
one year
5000 3000 S000 S000 s000 S000 5000 3000
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables 182 - - . - - 82 182
Other pavables [,863 - - - - - 1,863
Barrowings - 1% 44,087 - - - - - - 44,097
Totai 46,142 - - - - 182 46,142
Weighted Yariahle Fixed Maturity Dates Non
Parent Average interest interest Tatal
Eifective Rate Bearing
2010 Interest NZ 3000
Rate % Less than | 1-2 years -3 years 3.4 yeurs 4-5 years 5% years
one year
5000 5000 5000 5000 £080 3000 5000 000
Financiat Liabilities:
Trade payables 141 - - - - - 141 141
Qiher payables 1,753 . - - . . - 1.753
Bomowings - 4.03%% 3.22% 44,046 - - - - - - 44,046
Total 43,940 - - - - - 141 45540
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Note 14 (continucd)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that the counter party to & transaction with the Group wil fail to discharge its obligations, causing the Group to incur a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk through the normal trade credit eycle and advances to third parties. The Group performs credit evaluations on all cuslomers
requiring credit and gencrally dees not require collateral. Maximum exposures to credit sisk as at balance date are the carrying value of financial asseis in the
balance sheet,

Trade and other reeeivables include amounts that are vnimpaired but congidered past due as at balance date, An analysis of the age of such trde receivables is
included in the table foilowing

Ageing past due trade receivables Group Parent

2011 2010 2011 2019

s000 3000 S000 000
1-30 days 817 319 - -
30-60 days 26 51 - -
60-60 days (3 |3 - “
90-120 days 9 27 - -
Total 965 405 - -

o eollateral is held on the above amounts,

Concentrations of eredit risk
The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure lo any single counierparly or any group of counterpartics having similar characterdstics. The credit

risk on ¥quid fonds and derivative fmsnciat instruments is limited because the caunterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by Intermatienal eredit-
raling agencies.

Curreney risk
The Group enters into forward exchange eoniracts to hedge the group’s breign currency tisk an majer agsel purchascs.

There were no forward foreign currency (FC) centracts as at year end.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity sk {s the risk that the Group will encounter difficully in mising funds al short notice to meet ils financial commitments as they fall due. To reduce he exposure to
Yiquidity risk the CeatrePart has a bank overdraft Facility of $1 million {2010: $1 million), New Zealand doltar Commercial bill facilities of $203 million (2010: 5203 millior). OF
these $181.1 million (2010: $181.2 million) had been drawn down by the Group at balance date.

CenirePort Limited has an unsecured facility agrecment of 5203 million with Westpac Banking Corporation wilh renewal dates in 2011 and 2012, CentrePort Limited has entered
jale an unconditional sate with the Accident Compensation Corporation to sell 5095 of three investment properiies for $75 million. The transaction date is | Seplember 2011 and the
proceeds will be used 1o repay a ponion: of the facility that expires in Navember 2011.

The Boavd and management review forward eash flows an a menthly bass.

WRC Holdings has 7 $44 million term facility with Commonwealth Bank which expires in September 2013, and has recently requested the expiry date be
exterded by 1 year to Seplember 2014,
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Neote 14 (continued)

Liquidity profile of finaneial instruments - Group

The following tables detail the erity's liguidity profile based on undiscounted cash outflaws at 30 June 2011 ard 30 June 2010, assuming foture
interest cost on borrowings at 4,8% (2010: 4.8% } of the average debt for cach period.

Group 2011 Cash Flows
Total
Less than | 1-2 years 2-3 years 3.4 years 45 years 5+ years
one year
5000 5001 SH02 S003 5004 5005 5006
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables 10,592 - - - - - 10,592
Other payabtes 4517 03 - - - - 3,618
Other financial liabilities 2,334 2,055 1,504 397 53 993 8,538
Borrowings 100,839 94,317 46,112 - - 241,268
Financizl Assets .
Other financial assels - - - - - - -
Total 118,682 97.073 47.616 §97 753 995 66,016
Group 2010 Casl: Flows
Totat
Less than | 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5+ years
one year
S000 5001 S002 $003 5004 5005 5006
Financial ilabilities
Trade payables 8,993 - - - - - 8,993
Other payables 62,278 155 - - - - 63,033
Other financial liabilitics 966 979 824 492 434 1,422 5,134
Borrowings [14,618 35,040 92,160 - - - 241,818
Financial Assets -
Other finaacial assels 154 154 154 154 - - 616
Total 186,694 36,620 92,827 338 454 1422 318,355
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

Note 14 (continucd)
Liquidity prafile of financial instruments - Parent

The following tables detail the entity’s liquidity profile based on undiscounted cash outflows a1 30 June 2011 and 3¢ Junc 2010, assuming future
interest cost on horrowings at 4.826 (2010: 4.3%5) of the average debt for each period,

Parent 2011 Cash Flows
Total
Less than | 1-2 years 2.3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5% years
ane year
3000 001 5802 $003 5004 5005 S006
Financial Habilitics
Trade payables 182 - - - - - 182
Other payables 1,863 - - - - - 1,863
Other financial liabilities 50 45 a3 43 12 188
Borrowings 2,112 2412 46,112 - - - 50,336
Financinl Assets
Other financial assets - - - - - - -
Totat 4,207 2,157 46,157 45 12 - 52,579
Parent 2010 Cash Flows
Total
Less than | 1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years 4-5 years 5+ years
one year
S000 5001 5002 5003 S004 5005 5006
Financial liabilitics
Trade payables 141 - . - - - 141
Other payables 1,753 - - - - - 1,753
Borrowings 44,431 - . - - - 44,431
Financial Assets
Oher fnancial assets 153 152 132 457
Total 46,172 (152) (152) - - - 45,568
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 15

Disclosure for fessces

Leases

Operating leases eelate to siaddles and forklift trucks. The straddle lease is for a peried of 10 years; the forkiifl truck leasc terms are between 2 10 3 years, wilhi aa option to extend.

AVl operating lease contracts contain market review clzuses in the event that the CentrePort Limited exerciscs its option te rencw. CentrePort Limited does not have an oplion 1o
purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the Jease period.

Group Parent

00 2016 2011 2010

5000 S066 5000 $009
Non-cancellable operating lease payments
Not longer than 1 Year 1,754 1,323 - -
Longer than 1 year and not longer than 3 years 6,404 4,763 - -
Lonper than 5 years 3,786 4188 - -

11,94 104474 - -

Diselosure for [essors
Future minimum lease pavments under non-cancellable aperating lease are as follows: Group Parent

201 010 2011 2010
Non- cancellable operting fease receipis: 5000 S000 s000 5000
Mot Jater than 1 year 19,739 17,573 - -
Later than | year and rwo later than § years 39,021 56,545 - -
Later than 5 years 63,688 79.252 - -

144,448 163,370 - -

NOTE 16
Intangible Assets

Cost Accumulated Total
Group 2011 Amortisation

5000 5000 5000
Cpening 4,100 (3.459) &41
Additions 49 . 49
Dispesals .
Amortisation - {282) (382}
Closing balanee 4,149 (3,741) 40§
Group 2010 Cost Accumulated Total

Amortisatlan

S000 S000 5000
Opening 4,006 (3.047) 559
Additions 94 - 04
Disposals -
Amortisation - (41} {1123)
Closing balance 4,100 (3.459) 641

The amortisation expense is included in operating expenses in the Statement of comprehensive income (see Note 2).
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 17

Recancilintion of surplus for the year with cash flows from operating activities

Profit afier 1ax before minority interest
Less Dividends declared

Add /{Less) Non Cash Items:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Impairment of fixed assets

{Gain)loss on sale of propeny, plant & equipnient
{Gain) on sale of medical waste

Fixed assels written off

Disposal costs of Investment properies

Gain en fair value ntovement financial instruments
flevalvation movemenis

Impainnent of investmenls

Equity accounted carnings from associate companics
Deferred tax lisbility

Deferred 1ax asset

{Increasel/decrease in value of investments

Bad debi expense

Change in provision for doubtful debt

Add f(Less) Movements in Working Capital:
Accounis seceivable

Accounts payable

Revenuce in advance

Dividends receivable

Inveatory

Borrowings

Taxation - refund

Financial Instruments

Greater Wellington Regional Council
Current acconnt

Emgloyce entitlements

Add /(Less) Ttems Classified as Investing and
Financing Activities:
Dividends paid/payable
Sharcholder Subvention payable
Increase/(decrease) in current accounss refating to financing activities
Accounts Payable refated 1o Property, Plant & Equipment
Increase in Share Capital
Interest Capitalised
Accounts Receivable related to Property, Plant & Equipment
Net Cash Inflows From Operating Activitics

T IV

Group Parent

2011 010 2011 2010
S000 5000 $000 S000
$8,853 9,444 {381) (2,825)
{1,205) (1,196) (1,204) (1,196)
9,393 9,570 - N
282 412

(6% %) - -
1,903 7,691 457 94
6,206 102 b2 3,224
(324} [CLi2)] - .
32,889 3,784 - -

1,582)

47 13 -
(2,933 1,843 {4} (146)
1,620 (1,176} 4 112

. - 65 376
8.280) 29 - -

(198) (166} 3l a5
(101} 891 - -

197 197 -
1,209 (134) . .

- (260) {337

285 124 - -

3 (463} 8 (463}

(99} 112

101 LNe 101 415

(127.810) {10,625) - -
13,346 1,264 - -
16,330 21,242 - .




WRC BOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 18

Related Partics

WRC Holdings Ltd is 100% owned by Greater Wellington Regional Council. During the year transactions between WRC Holdings Lid
and related parties included:

Group

2011 2010

s600 000
Greater Wellington Regional Council
Enterest income on inter company currenl accounts 38 66
Rental income received (1,672) (1,611}
Proposcd dividend (1,204) {1,196)
Payment for management fees (352) (268)
Paymeat for rent and services, CentsePort 107 96
Paymeat for use of navigational facilitics, and guarantee of CentrePart borrowings (£.054) {626}
WRC Holdings Subsidiarics
Dividend income from Port Invesiments Lid and Pringle House Ltd - -
Interest income on Porl Investments Lid advance - -
CentrePae Ltd
Income roceived from rent and services performed, 37 378
Payment received for payroll and suppori services (19) (6]
Transport Systems 2000 Ltd
Income received from reat and services performed 1,134 1,026
Payment received for payrall and support services 70 [H
Payment for senvices performed 43) {34)

Wellington Port Coldstore Limited
[ncome received from rent and services performed, 170 165
Contribution to plant development - -

Parent

2011 2010
5040 5000

{19} {9
{1,204) {1,196)

(57} (35}
1,337 1,402
1,934 1,840

During the year subsidiary companies charged by way of lease rentals, $17.1 million to CentrePort (2010: 313.9 millfor). During the year CentcPort charged by wayol'a

Management Fee $1.2 million to 18 subsidfary company (2010: $1.2 miliion).

All transactions with related partics have been carried out on normal commercial terms.

At year-end the following outstanding balances with related pasties were recorded as an asset / (liabikity):

2011 2010

5000 S060
Greater Welliaglon Regicnal Council and Subsidiaries (151
CentrePac Limited - 4
Transport Systems 2000 Limited e} ig
The compensation of the Directars and executives, being the key management personnel of
CentrePor, is set out below:

2011 2010

5009 <090
Shor-term employee benefits 2,092 1,955
Total Key nanagetnent Personnel Compensation 2,002 i.953
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2611

NOTE 19
Cuontingent Linbilitics
The following contingent liabititics exisied at 3¢ Junc 2011:

Parent Company

The parent company has uncalled capital in Port Investments Lid of 510,000,160 (2010 $10,000,100).

The parent company has uncalled capital in Greater Wellingion Rail of $3,985,900 composed 0f 22,170,000 S1 shares unpaid to 27cents
and has reduced by 60.2¢ ffom 87.2 cents in 2H L.

Subsidiary Companies - CentrelPort Lid

The Fite Service Commission has indicated il does not consider the basis by which the Ports Insurance Collective (of which CentrePon is a part) caleulates fire service levies to be
compliant with the Fire Services Act. The Ports Collective has obtained legal advice that the basis for determining levies is in fact compliant with the Act and has initiated judicial
proceedings Lo establish this position. Should the judicial proceedings find in favour of the Fire Service Commission CentrePert would be liable for additional levies of $208,000.

Atbalance date CentreFort Limited had continzent liabilities of $730,008 beiny shares in Wellington Port Coldstore Limited subscribed but not paid (2010: $750,060).

Capital Commitments
The following capital commitments existed at 30 June 2011:

Parent Comgpany
‘The parent company has no capital commitments (2010: Nil ).

Subsidiary Companies - CentrePort Lid
At balance date commitments in respect of eontracts for capital expenditure are S1.1 million {2010: $5.6 million). These relate to wosks being camied out on the Aotez Quay and

Thomdon Container Wharf fender replacement praject {2010: Customhouse Building development),

Subsidiary Companics - Pringle House Lid
Thete were no contractual commitments at balanee date (30 June 2010: $33,000).

Subsidiary Companies - Greater Wellington Rail Ltd
Estimated contractual commitments at balance date but not provided were $150,996,600 ( 2010: 5150,168,000 ).
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 20

Subsequent Events

CentrePart Limited has entered into a conditional sale with the Accident Compensation Corporation to self 5035 of thiree investment properties for 575 million, Subsequent to year
end the sharcholders approved the transaction and the agreement has become unconditional. The selflement date is 1 September 2011 and the proceeds will e used (o repay a
portion of the Group's debt facility that expires in November 2011, The sale is by way of the issuance of $75m of mandatory convertible notes (MCNs) by special puspose vehicles
Harbour Quays F1F2 Limited, Harbour Quays Al Limited, and Harbour Quays D4 Limited, which are whally owned by the Parent. The lotal asset vatue of the three buildings
concemed is $151m.

CentrePort has deciared a final dividend of $708,000 post balance dats.
There were no other subsequent events up (o the date of these financial statements which would affect the amouats or disctosures in the financial statements.

NOTE 21

Significant Transactions

AL30 June 201 | Greater Wellington Rail Limited a 100% owned campany purchased metrepolitan rail assets from KiwiRail owned by the Government.
The consideration for thesc asseis which includes stations, platforms, and rail rolling stock was for a noménal consideration of 81.

‘The assets have been brought on to Greater Wellington Rail Limited books via the statement of comprehensive income. A valnation was undertaken

on 36 June 2001 by Halerow Pacific Ply Limited for the wil rolling stock and by Bayleys Valuations Limited for the non rail assets. The valuation of these
assets amonnted to $74,958,000 and is reflected in the increased value of investments. The value of the stock was agreed a1 58,498,000,
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WRC HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011

NOTE 22
Impact of changing financizal reporting status

WRC Holdings and GW Rail limited have reviewcd their financial reporting status. 1t has been determined that reparting as a public benefit entity better reflects the nature of the
major transactions in the eatity.

The impacts of changing GW Holdings and GW Rail from profit oriented entities to a public nenefit entities are:
Cagital grants and subsidies are recognised fully in the income statement when received and net held in the balance shees and spread over the assels life
Deferred tax liabilitics arise due fo 1he aceounting profit being made by recognising the capital grants and subsidies in the year they arc received

Adjustments compared to Profit oriented entity 2010
S000

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Grants and Subsidies - Revenue 8,695

Danated stock -

Taxation expense (1,477

impact an Profit 7218

Statement of changes in Equity
Retained Eamnings

Opening Balance® 34,373
Trofit for Year 7218
Closing Balance 41.5%1

Statement of financial position
Reeained Eamings [nerease 41591

Current Lizbilitics
Defered Income (3,770}

Non Current Liabilities

Deferred Income {33,780}
Deferred income tax 15,959
{37.821)

Net liabilities decrease (41,591)
2010 1009

*(pening Retained Eamings Adjustment 5000 S000
Retained Carmings 41391 34,373
Deferred Income (57.550) (48,855}
Deferred Income tax 15959 14,452
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WRC BOLDINGS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 36 JUNE 2011

Compliance .

The Company has breached the Local Government Act 2002 in shat audited financial statements were not available within 3 months of the 30 June 2011 batance
date required under section 67 (1). All other stalutory requirements of the Local Government Act 2002 in relation to the financial report have been coniplied
with.

Respansihilicy
The Directors and management of the Group accept responsibility for the preparation of the annual Financial Statemtents and the Statement of Serviee Ferfomance and the
judgements used in them.

The Directors have auhority 1o sign these financial statements,

The Directors and management of the Company accept 1espoasibility for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control designed 10 provide reasonable assurance as to the
inteprity and reliability of financial reporting.

In the opinion of the Directors and management of the Company. the annual Financial Statements and (he Statement of Service Perfomance for the year ended 30 June 2011 fairly
reflect the financial pesition and operations of the Company.

QOctober 20, 2011
Director
Director Qctober 20, 2011
Chief Financial Officer October 20, 2011
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